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Integrated Workflow Management System


2/17/09
TO:


All Potential Bidders
FROM:


Jason Edens, Senior Buyer



City of Seattle Purchasing




Phone: 206-684-0445 Fax: 206-386-0068



Email Address: Jason.edens@seattle.gov
REFERENCE:
Request for Proposal FFD 2404
A D D E N D U M # 1
Please find the following questions regarding the above mentioned RFP.

 

1. On page 18 in section 6 there is mention of submitting a "Contract Bond Form previously Provided" Is this form included in the RFP package? If so, where can we find it?

Answer: There is no Contract Bond Form for this solicitation.
 

2.  Is the City evaluating a hosted solution offering for licensing as well as a licensed model?
Answer: If the question is, are we looking at both options - supporting the system ourselves and purchasing the software licensing to do that versus externally hosted options that are either hosted by the software vendor or a third party, then the answer is yes. We are looking at all three scenarios:

· hosted and licensed by the City

· externally hosted by the vendor 

· externally hosted by the vendor with a third party hosting company
 

3.  Is the City willing to accept GSA schedule 70 product pricing for product cost submission?
Answer: Given the economic times that we are in, if the GSA schedule pricing is the vendor's most competitive response then the vendor can decide to use that response.  If the GSA schedule pricing is not the most competitive response, the vendor may decide to develop a more competitive response.  
 

4.  What CAD environment is the City using
Answer:  Auto CAD
 

5.  Is BIM technology approach being evaluated in this RFP?
Answer: Building Information Modeling is not being evaluated in this RFP. This technology is outside of the scope of this project.  
 

6.  What GIS solution is the City currently using for mapping and geo-processing?
Answer: ArcGIS
 

7.  Is GIS being used in the Real Property group currently?  Planned in the future?

Answer: Yes, it is currently used.

8. What is the total number of square feet (rounded in millions) in the portfolio to be managed?

Answer: Approximately 3.9 million square feet
9. Are 160 concurrent users the count you would like pricing to be based? Can you describe how this number was derived; include user types and business area served?

Answer: We would like to know what pricing is based on. For example, do you charge x amount for the first 50 users and then licenses are purchased in increments of X at a price of $X.  We want to understand what the pricing model is so we can anticipate what the City will be charged for the amount of licenses ordered. The users of the system will be Fleets and Facilities. Please clarify your request for user types. What is meant by user types?

10. For training, is the City comfortable with a Train‐the‐trainer approach, or is training of all desired and what is the approximate count of the total user base?

Answer: The City would like to understand what each of the vendors offers in the form of training. Training for all is desired and the approximate count of the total user base is in a range of 60 – 160. Please refer to SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSES – IMPLEMENTATION:
	8.5.1
	Describe end user and technical training options and costs including off site 

scheduled classes, onsite training options, video training, train-the-trainer 

options and web training courses. Cost information should be included 

in the Pricing Proposal.



	
	


11. Have you documented the scope of your interfaces, such as the following, and can you make such available?

Answer: The scope of the interfaces has not been documented.

12. PeopleSoft financials version 8 for GL Accounts, Journal Entries, AP, AR, and Purchasing. Real time, batch, one‐way or bi‐directional?

Answer: The scope of the interfaces has not been documented.

13. HR – employees to IWMS, locations back HR, Department and/or Organization?

Answer: The scope of the interfaces has not been documented.

14. Utility Manager Pro – consumption readings to IWMS? Utility invoices?

Answer: The scope of the interfaces has not been documented but yes, we would like consumption readings in IWMS or viewable in IWMS. Utility Invoices should also be viewable in IWMS.

15. Regarding the requirement “Ability to generate an Aging Schedule of Receivables”, the ability to generate an Aged Schedule of Receivables appears to assume that there will be integration with your Accounts Receivable – cash receipts function to update the IWMS data with invoices that have been paid, date paid and check. Can you elaborate on your above requested integration with PeopleSoft Financials to indicate the various touch points that you envision to and from the PeopleSoft system?

Answer: Our PeopleSoft environment is undergoing significant updates. At this time we cannot say what the integration would look like.
16. We understand the priority is High, but please describe the level of importance to the overall

solution for the event scheduling and conference room reservationing capabilities as described

in the functional requirements attachment?

Answer: Event management and the ability to manage events not just from a room scheduling perspective but to actually manage multiple calendars and events with maintenance activities is highly important.

17. Is there a preference of self hosted vs. external hosted solution? If self hosted is proposed, does the vendor need to respond to the questions 8.31.‐8.3.26 in the supplemental technical

attachment?

Answer: The vendor should supply a full response. We are looking at all three scenarios:

· hosted and licensed by the City

· externally hosted by the vendor 

· externally hosted by the vendor with a third party hosting company

18. Please elaborate on what specific metrics are required for employee productivity assessment as described in the functional requirements attachment?

Answer: Please provide the functional requirement number that is being referred to so we supply the appropriate response.

19. Please elaborate on the intent of the resource conservation requirement

Answer: The goal for resource conservation is to not only reduce overall consumption, but to work with the business units to provide technology solutions to help conserve business resources. 
20. We are a privately held corporation and typically do not provide financial details in our RFP

responses, but we will provide them in confidence directly to your designated representative

once we have been selected finalist in this evaluation. Will this compromise acceptance of our

proposal?

Answer: Not providing financial information upfront will compromise evaluation of your proposal.  
21. On page 20 of the IWMS bid document, the check list includes "Outreach Plan" as a mandatory attachment for Management Response, but we find no other reference to an outreach plan. Can you direct where in the RFP is this requirement identified?

Answer: The “Outreach Plan” is located in the Vendor Questionnaire. 
22. Page 18 and 24 of the IWMS bid document both have a comment about a Contract Bond, but there is no requirement identified elsewhere. Please provide the requirement or confirm that a contract bond is not required for this RFP.

Answer: There is no Contract Bond Form for this solicitation.

23. What level of experience does your IT team have in implementing SOA architectures? Please describe tools involved.

Answer:  The infrastructure supports various application architectures although SOA (Service Oriented Architectures) may have additional middle ware.


24. What database platform(s) do you use, and which is preferred for this solution? Which is PeopleSoft running on?

Answer: The City uses Oracle on Unix, SQL 2005 on Windows Server 2003 and Access. There is a significant install base in the City on both Oracle and SQL and therefore those are our preferred platforms.   PeopleSoft runs on our AIX environment. The PS data bases are currently Oracle.  


25. What application server environments do you use, which is preferred for this solution? Which is PeopleSoft running on?

 

Answer: There is no preferred solution at this time.

26. In review of the supplemental implementation response attachment, it appears the City is

assuming multiple phases for the implementation? Have you defined the overall roadmap

timeline, number of phases and scope for each phase (business processes, integrations, data

conversions)? If so, please elaborate or provide documentation.

Answer:  We have not developed a technology roadmap. We are looking for vendor recommended best practices. We would anticipate this to be a multi phased approach based on our discussions with Gartner. We would welcome presentation of approaches that vendors have found successful.
27. In regards to the "Key Staff Assignment Priority" section of the Management Response, does the word "dedicated" mean these resources are full‐time resource for the duration of the project?

Answer:  Our intent is that you provide us your “A” team. We want a good implementation and we believe that continuity of staff is essential to that.
28. Will polylined drawings be provided and what is the general condition of those drawings? Are vendor provided CAD services anticipated? If so, please elaborate?

Answer:  There are some polylined drawings available and condition of those is good. There are also drawings that are not available. Poly lining drawings is out of scope for this project and the vendor is not expected to provide CAD services.
29. In the Background section, you mention that the new system will replace four existing systems: SPAN FM, FMIS, Builder and Pro Lease. Have you determined the accuracy & value of the existing data in these systems and, if so, what level of data migration is intended from each system: Static/Master file and/or Transaction Data?

Answer: It is our intent that most data will not be migrated. We anticipate an upload of Static/Master data to prepare the new system. There are current efforts under way to evaluate existing data, the outcomes of which would be a factor on data migration.  
30. Has budget been allocated and released for this initiative? If so, can you disclose the amount?

Answer: It would be imprudent to disclose that at this time.
31. What GIS data do you intend to view from the IWMS system? Do you currently have a GIS

System containing (sentence was not completed by the submittor).
Answer: Yes, we use ArcGIS. It would be desirable to be able to represent property and facility information in a GIS format.
32. Under Utility Management – Can you tell us what the data format is for this system. For example, is the data stored in a Access / Oracle type data base? Or is it on an excel spread sheet or other data repository?
Answer: The data is stored in an access database and the front end application is called Utility Manager Pro.
33. Can you tell us the file format that your GIS information can be exported as?
Answer: ArcGIS is ESRI software and uses the ESRI standard.
34. What technology (operating system) do you currently use for your Mobil devices?

Answer: We do not have mobile devices currently since our existing system, SPAN-FM, does not offer that capability. We are looking for a long term solution that represents best practice.

35. What type of system for managing warehouse inventory and supplier management systems do you use? What output capabilities do they have?

Answer: We use SPAN-FM which stores the data in Oracle and we use excel spreadsheets for the tracking of non stock items.

36. Clarify what a “component” means.  Example: A PC or Monitor as a component or are you looking to track components inside a PC or Monitor?

Answer: Please provide context. We can only clarify "component" if the vendor supplies us with the context. We are most likely discussing building components which could mean a generator, chiller or HVAC system within a building. If the vendor supplies the context we can clarify what we mean by component. We are looking to track components inside buildings.
37. What file format does Utility Manager Pro use for exporting data?  What database systems do you have in place?
Answer: Utility Manager Pro stores its data in an Access database. Database systems that are in place include Oracle/Unix, SQL/Windows and Access.

38. Please clarify what you mean by “Ability to track markups in the System” under section 6.11.2 (Fin and Adm)?  What data output format is this information available in?

Answer: When FFD leases space from an outside property owner on behalf of a City tenant, FFD typically charges the City tenant the base lease amount plus an administrative markup.  The amount can vary from year to year. Ideally, we would be able to track that amount and percentage and track the changes over a period of time so we can see how it changed. This information is currently tracked in an excel spreadsheet.
39. 6.11.8 Can you give us an example of an aging schedule and what makes up receivables?

Answer: The requirement is as follows:

6.11.8
Ability to generate an aging schedule of receivables. Priority: High

The purpose of this requirement is to see how the vendor's system provides an aging schedule and receivables.

40. 6.11.9 Same thing, can you give us an example?
Answer: The requirement is as follows:

6.11.9
Ability to reconcile inventory between inventory records and physical inventory. Priority: High

Again, we want to understand the vendor's approach on how their system could help us reconcile inventory records in the system versus a physical count. For example, do they have barcoding so when a physical count is performed, the data is populated in the system. The current inventory reconciliation process is manual.  
41. Can you tell us the total quantity of administrative personnel who would be administering the program?

Answer: Please define what is meant by administrative personnel.  
42. Can you tell us the total number of employees?

Answer: Please clarify your question. Do you mean total number of employees who will be using the system? Total number of employees that work for the City of Seattle?

43. Can you tell us if your existing Floor plan drawings have been Poly-lined and tagged? How many drawings do you have?

Answer: Some have and some have not. Poly-lining and tagging are out of scope for the initial implementation. 

44. The RFP document indicates that the following requirement would seem to result in our exclusion:  

3.1.1    The vendor must have had at least three experiences implementing their application for city or other government entities in the United States or abroad.

Having implemented our solution for other clients however, we are unable to meet the 3.1.1 requirement at present.    Is the City is able to forgo this requirement?  

Answer. The emphasis on this requirement is experience working with the public sector since that is very different from the private sector. However, there is still lots of flexibility here if the vendor is thoughtful in their response.  
In regards to Minimum Qualification:

 

3.1.1    The vendor must have had at least three experiences implementing their application for city or other government entities in the United States or abroad.

City or government entities includes city, state, county or federal governments; municipalities, port authorities, colleges, universities, community colleges, schools, and school districts. 

45. After reviewing the RFP; we were curious if the City of Seattle would consider a custom developed solution.  Not only do we have experience implementing this type of system with little customization but we meet if not exceed all the requirements:

We have over 10 years experiences in which we have successfully implemented our solution in both public and private sector entities within the US. We have hosting capabilities as well as experience providing maintenance /IT support services to our clients which is verifiable through reference checks with our existing customers.

Answer: We are looking to purchase Commercial Off the Shelf software solutions which is defined as: "software or hardware products, which are ready-made and available for sale to the general public." If your product meets those criteria, you are welcome to respond.  

46. When addressing the four systems being replaced, are you looking for a software application the includes a leasing module as part of the workflow solution?  

Answer. Yes
47. There is a bad link in the RFP on the top of page 9:
City website.  The City website for this RFP and related documents is:   http://www.seattle.gov/purchasing/
Answer: The correct link should be:


http://www.seattle.gov/purchasing/pan.htm
48. Page 3: Part 2 “Objectives”:  

Please provide additional information on the City’s “resource conservation” function.

Answer: The goal for resource conservation is to not only reduce overall consumption, but to work with the business units to provide technology solutions to help conserve business resources for more information please view the City’s link below:
http://www.seattle.gov/html/CITIZEN/climate.htm
49. 3.1.3: Clarify the acceptable role of a Vendor Authorized Service partner.  Must a Services partner- who may be contracted as the implementation resource- be also authorized to sell the manufacturer’s product in order to qualify?

Answer: We are looking for a software provider. Part of the software provider’s responsibility is to provide or coordinate implementation services.

50. High Security RFP Specification Material: Is the City of Seattle willing to execute a mutual NDA for purpose of protecting all information disclosed within a vendor RFP response?

Answer:  Please refer to the RFP section 5.20 Proprietary Proposal Material. 

51. When will answers to the 2/24/09 questions be released by the City?
Answer: By February 26, 2009 or sooner.

52. Will the City publish all questions? 
Answer: Yes
53. Will the City maintain those questions as confidential? 
Answer: The City will publish all questions and responses. Please refer to the RFP section 5.20 Proprietary Proposal Material. 
52. Hosting: Will the City consider a software-as a service (SAS) delivery model?
Answer: Yes
54. Project implementation timeline: Will the City provide its project plan for implementation? 
Answer: The City is looking to the vendor for a recommended implementation project schedule and plan.
55. What functional IWMS areas are the priority? 
Answer: The functional areas of priority for the IWMS are Property Management and Facilities Operations.
54. Does the City currently use GIS, subscribe to a GIS service, or have a preferred GIS provider?

Answer: Yes, the City uses ArcGIS.

55. Please confirm which CAD application and version is the City standard?

Answer: CAD is out of scope for this implementation. The City would like the ability to view CAD drawing from with the system. If there are specific versions of CAD needed, please let us know what those are.

56. What is the mobile device and mobile OS standard?  If no “standard” is in place would you provide a list of mobile devices in use?

Answer: We do not have mobile devices currently since our existing system, SPAN-FM, does not offer that capability. We are looking for a long term solution that represents best practice.

57. Is Microsoft Projects in use and if so is there any integration requirement?
Answer: Capital Projects is out of scope. They use Microsoft Project. There are currently no integration requirements.
58. Why is it referred to as an Integrated WORKFLOW Management System? We know IWMS to mean something different - what is the reason for replacing "workplace" with "workflow"
Answer: We have seen both terms used interchangeably – “workflow” and “workplace”.  No, it does not mean something different.
59. Preference between internally or externally hosted? Page 2, Section 1, Paragraph: Purpose. There are several places <insert exact locations here> that reference one or the other but which way should it be priced when a vendor offers both solutions?

Answer: The vendor should provide a full and complete response. We are looking at all three scenarios:

· hosted and licensed by the City

· externally hosted by the vendor 

· externally hosted by the vendor with a third party hosting company
60. Purpose of User Interface Guidelines. Page 2, Section 1, Paragraph: Background.  

The paragraph states "FFD is looking for a Commercial-Off-The-Shelf (COTS) application that will require little or no customization."  Then on page 4, Section 2.2, Line 2.2.10 notes that the software should be designed "as typified" by the Microsoft Usability standards.  Who determines that the User Interface is acceptable? and should there be money allocated to customizing the user interface should it not meet the standards?

Answer: The vendor demos will provide an indication to the evaluation team whether the system is usable or not.  

61. User Interface Guidelines - Should we be reviewing? And in what context?  Considering Question 3...
Answer: It is our intent to purchase a software system that is usable by our staff.
62. Minimum requirement 3.1.1 - 3 Experiences. Based on what section 3.0, Line 3.1.1 is stating, every vendor will be disqualified if they do not meet ALL the requirements.  Is that true?  If yes, does the qualifications from a sub vendor within the team count as meeting the requirements?
Answer:  If the vendor does not meet the four Minimum Qualifications and Licensing Requirements, the vendor will be disqualified as stated on page 6 of the RFP. We are looking for a software provider that is the prime contractor. If the prime contractor works with a sub contractor, that is the prime contractors responsibility.
63. Number and Types of Users? In order to provide proper (and consistent) pricing, how many system users should be accommodated?  Section 6.16.1 notes that "The ability for an IWMS to maintain greater than 160 concurrent users...without taking a performance hit".  Assuming that is for some self service features (i.e. web based maintenance requests being submitted, etc.), but how many "Site Admin"/ heavy users would be necessary?

Answer: We would like to know what pricing is based on. For example, do you charge x amount for the first 50 users and then licenses are purchased in increments of X at a price of $X.  We want to understand what the pricing model is so we can anticipate what the City will be charged for the amount of licenses ordered. The users of the system will be Fleets and Facilities. Five power users should be able to access the system at any given time without taking a performance hit. 


64. Why is The City unwilling to sign a licensing or maintenance agreement? As per page 11, Section 5.10 Contract Terms and Conditions, paragraph 7, "The City will not sign a licensing or maintenance agreement supplied by the Vendor." How do they expect to obtain the software without signing an agreement?

Answer: The paragraph in its entirety says:

“The City will not sign a licensing or maintenance agreement supplied by the Vendor. If the vendor requires the City to consider otherwise, the Vendor is also to supply this as a requested Exception to the Contract and it will be considered in the same manner as other Exceptions.”
65. Contradiction of Maintenance Payment. On Page 11, Section 5.10, paragraph 7 it states that "The City will not sign a licensing or maintenance agreement supplied by the vendor.", however, on Page 11, Section 5.11, Paragraph 1, it states "Maintenance subscriptions may be paid in advance provided that should the City terminate early, the amount paid shall be reimbursed to the City on a prorated basis...".  So is the City willing to sign a maintenance agreement or not?

Answer: If the vendor is selected, the City will sign a licensing and maintenance agreement that is provided by the City. In addition, refer to the answer to question 64.
66. Length of time for "acceptance of satisfactory compliance"? As per Page 11, Section 5.11 Prohibition on Advance Payments, Paragraph 1, it states that "...all other expenses are payable net 30 days after receipt and acceptance of satisfactory compliance."  What is the time allotted for their acceptance/ rejection?

Answer: Acceptance/rejection is contingent upon deliverables being met as per the project milestones. If milestones are met on time, on budget and in scope, acceptance will follow in a timely manner.

67. Does the City have a preferred template for the proposal? Page 18
Answer: The City has supplied a check list of materials for the vendor responses and in most cases provided a format for the response.
68. Is a Dunn and Bradstreet Number a Requirement? As per the "Management Response" Page 2 of 6

Answer: If the vendor has a Dunn and Bradstreet number, it should be disclosed. 
69. License for Use Clause in Contract. Per Page 5 of the Contract, Section 10 "License for Use" states that "As part of the price of the System, the Vendor hereby grants to the City, and the City accepts from the Vendor, for so long as the City continues to use the system, a non-exclusive, fully paid, royalty free, perpetual license to unlimited use of the Software and related documentation,  for use on the system acquired by the City under this contract."  Does "use of the software" intended to include all modules of the vendor's offerings, regardless of what the City purchases as part of this contract?  What is the ambition or what is the end result that you are trying to accomplish?

Answer: Whatever license modules the City has paid for, the City will have continual right to use them.  
70. Software Upgrades and Enhancements. As per Page 5 of the Contract, section 13 "Software Upgrades and Enhancements" it states that all upgrades and enhancements are to be supplied to the City at no additional cost.  Do they realize that this will significantly increase the upfront cost of the software in order to account for the additional costs down the road?

Answer: The City expects that maintenance will cover software upgrade costs.  The assumption is that licensing is inclusive of all initial software costs.  We are trying to determine total cost of ownership so we can budget accordingly for the City’s complex budget process.  
71. Is there a Budget Maximum? Are there budget constraints or a pre-approved budget amount?
Answer: Our intention is to review proposals before determining our capital expenditure.
72. What firms have requested/furnished NDA’s to City? 

Answer: The portions that would require non disclosure agreements would be confidential materials submitted by the vendor and the vendor demos. At this stage in our RFP process, this is not a requirement.
73. System Requirements - Functional - Line 6.8.1. States: "Ability to store, retrieve and print utility bills associated with a building in the system".  Please give a more detailed description of objective, including location of where utility bills are stored as well as other documents.
Answer: The goal for resource conservation is to not only reduce overall consumption, but to work with the business units to provide technology solutions to help conserve business resources for more information please view the City’s link below:

http://www.seattle.gov/html/CITIZEN/climate.htm
74. System Requirements - Functional - Line 6.8.3. States: "Ability to store real estate market research information in the system".  Please give a more detailed description of objective.

Answer: We would like to store and associate market research by attaching documents as they relate to a particular tenant.  
75. System Requirements - Functional - Line 6.11.1. States: "Ability to track revenue that comes from multiple sources".  Please give more detailed description of objective. What is the revenue source?
Answer:  A “property” may have multiple revenue sources.  For example a building may have City tenants and non-City tenants and FFD employees.  We need to be able to differentiate between them.

76. System Requirements - Functional - 6.11.2. States: "Ability to track mark ups in the system".  Please provide a more detailed description of objective. Is this lease related?

Answer: When FFD leases space from an outside property owner on behalf of a City tenant, FFD typically charges the City tenant the base lease amount plus an administrative markup.  The amount can vary from year to year. Ideally, we would be able to track that amount and percentage and track the changes over a period of time so we can see how it changed. This information is currently tracked in an excel spreadsheet.
77. What date of response on questions due 2/24 can be expected from DEA?

Answer: Responses will be posted on the City web site as soon as they become available but no later than February 26, 2009.  
78. Questions due on or before 2/24, will they become part of the public record, posted on site as additional addendum?

Answer. Yes. 

In all other respects, the Request for Proposal FFD 2404 remains unchanged.   
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